
APC \ AGENDAS \ OC  
In accordance with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADA”), the 

Area Plan Commission of Tippecanoe County will not discriminate against qualified individuals with 
disabilities on the basis of disability in its services, programs, or activities.  For more information visit 

www.tippecanoe.in.gov/ada 

 THE 
A R E A  P L A N  C O M M I S S I O N

OF TIPPECANOE COUNTY 

ORDINANCE & BYLAW COMMITTEE 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
DATE ................................................................................................. FEBRUARY 4, 2026 
TIME ..................................................................................................................... 4:35 PM 
PLACE ........................................................................................... TIPPECANOE ROOM 

COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING 
20 NORTH 3RD STREET 

LAFAYETTE, IN 47901 
AGENDA 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
From the January 7, 2026 meeting.

II. UPDATING LOT COVER PERCENTAGES IN SELECT ZONES
This amendment, proposed at the request of Ordinance Committee, would 
allow larger houses in our single-family zones without requiring a building 
coverage variance.

III. BYLAW CHANGE: INCREASING OUR FEES FOR REQUIRED SIGNAGE 
The cost of purchasing signs for cases has gone up significantly…therefore 
the current $10 fee per sign no longer covers our cost.

IV. CHANGING FOOTNOTE 52 OF THE UZO USE TABLE REGARDING 
GROUND FLOOR RESIDENTIAL
West Lafayette is requesting this change for its CBW-zoned Discovery Park 
District overlay neighborhood.

V. CITIZEN COMMENTS

VI. ADJOURNMENT

1



APC \ AGENDAS \ OC  
In accordance with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADA”), the 

Area Plan Commission of Tippecanoe County will not discriminate against qualified individuals with 
disabilities on the basis of disability in its services, programs, or activities.  For more information visit 

www.tippecanoe.in.gov/ada 

 
 

Membership of the APC Ordinance & Bylaw Committee: 
(Committee members are appointed by the APC President to one-year terms starting each January.) 

 
Larry Leverenz 
Gary Schroeder 
Jackson Bogan 
Tom Murtaugh 

Vicki Pearl 
Diana Luper 
Kathy Parker 

Jerry Reynolds 

2



AREA PLAN COMMISSION OF TIPPECANOE COUNTY 
ORDINANCE & BYLAW COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
 

DATE ................................................................................................................................... January 07, 2026 
TIME ................................................................................................................................................. 4:40 P.M. 
PLACE ............................................................................................................. COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING 
 20 N. 3RD STREET 

LAFAYETTE, IN 47901 
 

This meeting was held in-person. Members of the public could watch the livestream of the meeting at 
https://www.youtube.com/c/TippecanoeCountyGovernment 

           
MEMBERS PRESENT MEMBERS ABSENT STAFF PRESENT 
Jackson Bogan Kathy Parker Larry Leverenz Ryan O’Gara Amanda Esposito 
Diana Luper Gary Schroeder Vicki Pearl Kathy Lind Nathan McBurnett 
Tom Murtaugh  Jerry Reynolds Eric Burns, Atty  

 

Gary Schroeder called the meeting to order at 4:40 PM. 
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Jackson Bogan moved to approve the minutes from the December 3, 2025, public hearing. Diana Luper 
seconded, and the minutes were approved by a unanimous voice vote.  
 

II. UPDATING THE HEIGHT REQUIREMENT IN R3W AND R4W: 
An amendment to change the way West Lafayette measures the height of buildings in R3W and 
R4W.  

 

Kathy Lind, APC staff, stated that, as was discussed last month, this topic is a request from West 
Lafayette staff. Instead of 14 feet from the lowest point of the average finished ground level to the finished 
floor of the upper story, it is proposed to be changed to 40 feet from the ground to the roof. A handout 
was given showing 4 changes to the ordinance. She found that NBU maximum building height in 
university proximate for multi-family also had the abnormal height measurement. That will be changed as 
well.  
 

Gary Schroeder said this change is straight forward and is a very old standard.  
 

Gary Schroeder asked if any member of the audience wished to comment.  There were none. 
 

Tom Murtaugh asked what happens if the ground level is a basement area or a drop-off.  
 

Kathy Lind said it is measured from wherever the front of the building is and if the front is on a hill, then it 
is averaged and the measurement is taken from that point. That is also able to be varied.  
 

Jackson Bogan moved to send this onto APC as presented with a positive recommendation. Diana Luper 
seconded. 
 

Gary Schrodeder asked for any other comments or other discussion. Hearing none, the motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 

III. UPDATING THE SIZE LIMITATION ON ADUs: 
This is an ongoing discussion to receive input from Ordinance Committee members regarding 
accessory dwelling unit size. 

 

Nathan McBurnett, APC staff, continued the discussion from last month about the inquiries from people 
who want to increase the size of their ADUs. He presented a list of ADU regulations from other 
jurisdictions across the state. The main questions posed at the last meeting were whether there were 
implications if the size were increased and if there should be a cap on size.  

3

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCJleeA9ZQo9E11GdZTdjurQ/featured


Gary Schroeder wondered what problems might arise if someone were to build two residences on one 
property, then later down the road wants to separate the properties.  
 

Kathy Lind said they might be able to do a minor subdivision or parcelization but that might not always be 
possible.  
 

Eric Burns asked which zones were being discussed. 
 

Nathan McBurnett said ADUs are currently only permitted in A, AW, AA, and RE. 
 

Jackson Bogan asked if they wanted to allow a second home to be built as an ADU. The size must be 
limited otherwise they open themselves up to having two homes on one lot, subverting doing a 
parcelization or minor subdivision.  
 

Gary Schroeder asked if utilities needed to be connected to the main structure, or if the ADU could have 
its own. 
 

Nathan McBurnett said that was originally discussed but it was decided that it was up to the health 
department.   
 

Jackson Bogan asked if the current size was 750 sq. ft. and if that could be on the main level as well.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said that 750 sq. ft. is the max without a variance through BZA and is measured as the 
livable area between multiple floors whether it is attached, detached, or integrated into the home.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said most of what he had heard of prior to this was a unit above a detached three-car 
garage.  
 

Kathy Parker asked what happens if she owns a home with an ADU and wants to sell, what happens to 
the tenants and the price of the home.  
 

Gary Schroeder thought it could not be a rental unit.  
 

Jackson Bogan said the primary residence must be occupied.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said either the primary home or ADU can be occupied by the property owner; the 
property owner must live on site. 
 

Amanda Esposito said the ADU is sold as part of the property, you cannot sell just part of it. So, the 
property owner would need to work out arrangements with the tenant.   
 

Gary Schroeder said any leases would go with the sale of the property. 
 

Nathan McBurnett said people who have been wanting ADUs are wanting to build a new home on the 
property that is larger than their existing home, turning the smaller home into the ADU. Airbnb’s are not 
currently allowed in ADUs, so people want to live in an ADU and Airbnb their home. This is not currently 
addressed in the ordinance.  
 

Tom Murtaugh asked what GFA means.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said Ground Floor Area, and this could include an attached garage.  
 

Kathy Lind said GFA is used to determine lot coverage. 
 

Eric Burns asked if GFA was a defined term.  
 

Gary Schroeder said he thought they talked about the livable area.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said they talked about livable area for an ADU so, for example, they could have a 
detached garage that isn’t included in the 750 sq. ft.  

4



Tom Murtaugh said currently they can seek a variance to exceed the 750 sq. ft.  
 

Jackson Bogan discussed taking the limit to 1,000 sq. ft. and asked how high people are wanting to go.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said some people want a full-sized home. 
 

Jackson Bogan said he can understand a mother-in-law suite, father-in-law suite, or 1,000 sq. ft. but 
anything larger needs to go through the process of building a separate home.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said or if they want to go above 1,000 sq. ft. then they need to apply for a variance.  
 

Nathan McBurnett asked if they decided to up it to 1,000 sq. ft., do they want that to be variable, have a 
cap that’s not variable, or set it as a percentage of the primary building.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said they should have a cap and maybe that’s set as a percentage of the primary building. 
However, he wasn’t sure he liked that idea either.  
 

Jackson Bogan said 1,200 sq. ft. accommodates your in-laws.  
 

Tom Murtaugh asked if he was suggesting the limit be set at 1,200 sq. ft. with no variance.  
 

Jackson Bogan said he’s considering 750-1,000 sq. ft. max. 
 

Gary Schroeder said they are discussing the limit to which you can’t vary passed.  
 

Tom Murtaugh reiterated that Jackson was saying you can’t vary over 1,000 sq. ft.  
 

Jackson Bogan said a home is a home and that process should go through parcelization. 
 

Eric Burns asked if it matters if you have a primary residence that is 12,000 sq. ft.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said he doesn’t think it does. He asked what the dimensions were of a three-car garage. It 
was determined to be about 36x24 ft., which is 864 sq. ft.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said every request, being 10 at most, the 750 sq. ft. limit has been what’s holding 
petitioners back. They can keep going to BZA for variances or change the ordinance to facilitate ADUs.  
 

Amanda Esposito said this was originally written for urban areas and 750 sq. ft. seems small for rural 
areas.  
 

Gary Schroeder asked what size petitioners were wanting.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said one person wanted 1,200, another wanted a full-sized home since their primary 
was 1,000 sq. ft., and some haven’t been clear on what they want.  
 
Tom Murtaugh clarified that those inquiries can still apply for variances based on what they have now.  
 

Eric Burns asked if there were counties that have a history of ADUs.  
 
Nathan McBurnett believed Monroe County has had their regulation in place for over 10 years. He wasn’t 
sure how long the other area plan commissions from the handout had theirs.  
 

Tom Murtaugh liked the language Boone County used regarding an ADU in a basement being able to use 
the entire building footprint. He proposed that they up the limit from 750 to 1,000 sq. ft. and let it be varied 
to 1,200.  
 

Gary Schroeder said 1,000 and 1,200 were too close. 
 

Jackson Bogan asked how they felt about having a 1,000-1,200 sq. ft. ranch home.  
  

5



Kathy Parker said that it’s too big but likes the basement stipulation. 
 

Tom Murtaugh said of the folks he has spoken to, all of them want to do an ADU above the garage and 
the 864 sq. ft. number makes sense. He wouldn’t want to go smaller than that, so he wants to push it to 
1,000 with a variance up to 1,200 sq. ft.  
 

Kathy Parker said her daughter lives in the upstairs of a house and maybe that could follow the same 
language as the basement portion. ADUs could have different requirements if it’s a separate building.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said it could be the entire footprint of a detached garage unit.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said it might be confusing to have two square footage thresholds numbers, so instead 
they could have a percentage of sq. footage with a maximum. A non-variable ordinance must be outside 
of Chapters 2 & 4.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said we currently have 50%. 
 

Kathy Lind said it is 50% of gross floor area which includes ground floor and upstairs. 
 

Jackson Bogan said for example a 2,000 sq. ft. home could have a 1,000 sq. ft. ADU.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said that was correct, and in that case, they would need a variance if they wanted a 
1,100 sq. ft. ADU.  
 

Jackson Bogan said if someone has a 1,200 sq. ft. house and they want to build a 1,200 sq. ft. ADU, do 
they want to change the percentage to allow them to build a larger ADU from a smaller primary residence. 
 

Amanda Esposito said that building code has a minimum of 750 sq. ft. and anything smaller falls into tiny 
home territory.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said that 751 sq. ft. is the square footage threshold for a single-family home.  
 

Ryan O’Gara said tiny homes have a separate code.  
 

Tom Murtaugh said we currently have a minimum of 400 sq. ft. 
 

Amanda Esposito clarified that tiny homes qualify as ADUs. 
 

Nathan McBurnett said the original intention was to keep the ADU under the threshold of a single-family 
home within the 400-750 sq. ft.  
 

Tom Murtaugh asked how someone could build a 2,500 sq. ft. guest house on Haggerty.  
 

Nathan McBurnett said it depends on the zone.  
 

Kathy Lind said people can get around limitations because dwellings have certain stipulations like 
needing a kitchen or bathroom. 
 

Tom Murtaugh motioned that they allow the lesser of 1,000 sq. ft. or 50% of the GFA of the primary 
dwelling, or the entire building footprint if it’s in the basement, with maximum square footage in the 
ordinance definition to be no greater than 1,200 sq. ft. Diana Luper seconded.  
 

Gary Schroeder asked for further comments or discussions. 
 

Gary Schroeder asked if they wanted people to come back for variances on 200 sq. ft.  
 

Nathan McBurnett didn’t think it needed to say 1,000 sq. ft. and instead should say, “In no case greater 
than 1,200 sq. ft.” After discussion, it was agreed that the “in no case greater than 1,200 sq. ft.” would go 
in the definition and the “50% gross floor area” cap would go in Chapter 4, so it can be varied. 

6



Tom Murtaugh amended the motion to allow the lesser of 1,200 sq. ft. or 50% of the GFA, in the case of 
an ADU in the basement in the primary residence, the entire building footprint. This will be sent to the 
Area Plan Commission with full approval. Diana Luper seconded.  
 

Gary Schroeder said that it’s basically the Boone County language without the 10% lot area stipulation.  
 

Gary Schroeder asked for other comments or discussions. Hearing none, the motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 

IV. WHAT’S NEXT FOR UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

Ryan O’Gara stated that in February they will bring back the lot coverage discussion. For the March and 
April meetings they will be discussing solar which will be advertised and have the draft ordinance 
available.  
 

Gary Schroeder commented that he saw in the state legislature they are talking about solar and not 
allowing restrictions if something was not in place prior to 12/31/25. 

 

V. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Gary Schroeder asked if there were any other citizen comments. There were none. 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Jackson Bogan moved to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 5:18 pm.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Danielle Bistline 
Recording Secretary 
 
 

Reviewed By, 

 

 
 

Ryan O’Gara 
Executive Director 

 

 

 

7



MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Ordinance & Bylaw Committee 
FROM: Kathy Lind, Senior Planner  
SUBJECT: February agenda items 
DATE:  January 29, 2026 
 

1. Changing the percentage of lot cover and percentage of greenspace: 
See the attached chart and explanation of terms from the December Ordinance 
Committee agenda packet.  This proposed UZO change, at the behest of a 
member of Ordinance Committee, would expand the maximum building lot cover 
in R1, R1A and R1B zones by 5%, and shrink the required greenspace percentage 
by 5%.  The largest ground floor of a house permissible on the smallest lot under 
this amendment, would be 3,500 square feet in R1; 2,650 in R1A and 2,400 square 
feet in R1B. 
 
This was discussed at the December Ordinance Committee where it was decided 
to table the discussion until the February Ordinance Committee to get feedback 
from BAGL (Builder’s Association of Greater Lafayette).  BAGL received an email 
from staff with the proposed UZO change; interactions with BAGL members 
following this email indicate they are favorable to this update. 
 

2. Updating the cost of case signs: 
Currently all BZA and APC cases require the posting of a sign on each street 
frontage of a property under discussion.  These signs are purchased by APC staff 
from the sign manufacturer and prepared by APC staff for each petitioner.  The 
cost of these cardboard signs, as shown in the APC bylaws, is $10 each.  
Unfortunately, these cardboard signs are no longer available for staff to purchase.  
Instead, a more durable “corrugated” plastic sign has been the only sign available 
for staff to order.  These signs cost staff $32 per sign; therefore, staff is proposing 
a change to the bylaws regarding sign price.  Staff would continue to sell the 
dwindling supply of cardboard signs still on-hand for $10, but sell the new plastic 
signs for $32 each to recover our cost. 
 

3. West Lafayette’s request to update footnote 52 in the UZO’s use table: 
Currently, footnote 52 in the UZO’s use table states the following: 
 

Residential uses in the Courthouse Proximate and Upper Main Street 
Area, and NBU and CBW zones shall be located above the non-residential 
ground floor, or located to the rear of a commercial storefront on the ground 
floor, except that one handicapped accessible dwelling unit may be located 
on the ground floor of non-elevator buildings in addition to non-residential 
uses.   

 
West Lafayette would like to see the following addition: “However, the ground 
floor of buildings zoned CBW within the Discovery Park District overlay is 
exempt from this requirement at the discretion of the Administrative Officer.” 

8



Memorandum 

TO:  APC Ordinance Committee 
FROM: Kathy Lind, Senior Planner 
SUBJECT: Proposed changes to Building cover and Greenspace cover percentages 
DATE:  November 26, 2025 
 
The table on the next page shows the current UZO regulations and what changes are 
being proposed.  Below is an explanation of the two standards to be discussed. 
 
Maximum building cover percentage: 
This standard is a maximum, while most other UZO standards are minimums (minimum 
setback, minimum parking required, minimum lot area and width, etc.).  When calculating 
this standard, all roofed structures are included.  This means detached garages, the 
ground floor of houses, roofed patios and sheds are all included in this calculation.  The 
area of each structure is figured and then added together.  This figure is then divided by 
the lot area and multiplied by 100 to achieve the lot coverage percentage.  If the 
percentage is above the UZO maximum for that zone, a variance may be filed with the 
BZA. 
 
Minimum vegetative cover percentage: 
When calculating vegetative cover, the area of all roofed structures is calculated, as well 
as any patios, decks, sidewalks, and driveways.  This figure is subtracted from the lot 
area to discover the area of greenspace on the lot.  As above, this figure is divided by the 
lot area and multiplied by 100 to get the vegetative cover percentage.  This figure is a 
minimum standard.   If the minimum cannot be reached, a variance may be filed with the 
BZA.  
 
Notice there is a constant 30% difference between the building cover percentages in each 
zone and the corresponding vegetative cover percentages.  This difference basically 
amounts to sidewalks, paved driveways and patios and has always been deemed 
sufficient.   (A larger lot will likely have more sidewalks and more driveway; a smaller lot 
will have less of both.)  Both staff and A.O.s agree this percentage works and there’s no 
reason to widen or lessen this difference in standards. 
 
These standards are calculated when a permit for a new house is reviewed and also when 
detached garages, sheds or additions to an existing house go through the permitting 
process. 
 
Anecdotal evidence appears to indicate that the public desires larger houses.  As our 
population ages, more people wish to live in single-story homes, which typically have a 
larger footprint than two-story houses.  These changes to the R1, R1A and R1B zones 
were discussed by staff and approved by the Administrative Officers. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 

9



PROPOSED CHANGES TO BUILDING COVER PERCENTAGES IN OUR R1 ZONES: 

Current UZO requirements: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Max house equals the largest footprint of a house permitted on the smallest lot in that zone without variance.  
The second story of a two-story house is never included in this calculation…only the area under roof on the ground floor. 
**R1U zones are only in the urbanized, sewered areas of our cities and towns and already fully developed. 
***R3 (single, two and multi-family residential) is included here since the catalyst for this discussion was a developer 
who chose to rezone to R3 with a commitment that only R1-sized lots with single-family houses would be created. This  
allowed the development to have 40% building coverage without any variances or PD rezones. 
 
 
Staff is proposing: 

Zones Lot size 
minimum 

Lot width 
minimum 

Bldg. cover 
maximum 

Veg. coverage 
minimum 

Max house on smallest 
lot 

R1 10,000 75’ 35% 35% 3,500 sq ft 
R1A 7,500 60’ 35% 35% 2,625 sq ft 
R1B 6,000 50’ 40% 30% 2,400 sq ft 
R1C 4,400 40’ 40% 30% 1,760 sq ft 
R1U 4,000 40’ 40% 30% 1,600 sq ft 
R3 6,000 60’ 40% 30% 2,400 sq ft 

 

Zones Lot size 
minimum 

Lot width 
minimum 

Bldg. cover 
maximum 

Veg. coverage 
minimum 

Max. house* on 
smallest lot 

R1 10,000 75’ 30% 40% 3,000 sq ft 
R1A 7,500 60’ 30% 40% 2,250 sq ft 
R1B 6,000 50’ 35% 35% 2,100 sq ft 
R1C 4,400 40’ 40% 30% 1,760 sq ft 

R1U** 4,000 40’ 40% 30% 1,600 sq ft 
R3*** 6,000 60’ 40% 30% 2,400 sq ft 

R3 with R1 lots 10,000 75’ 40% 30% 4,000 sq ft 

10


	OC 02042026 agenda
	ORD Minutes 01.07.2026
	February 2026 meeting



